NET-tel Corporation

NET-TEL CORPORATION 11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550 Reston, Virginia 20190

RATES, RULES and REGULATIONS for FURNISHING
RESALE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES
Filed with the
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of service and facilities for resale telecommunication services provided by NET-tel Corporation between points within the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550 Reston, Virginia 20190

CHECK SHEET

Pages of this tariff, as indicated below, are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective pages. Original and revised pages, as named below, comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this page.

PAGE	REVISION	PAGE	REVISION
1	Original	26	2 nd Rev.
2	4 th Rev. *	26.1	Original
3	Original	26.2	Original
4	Original	26.3	Original
5	Original	26.4	Original
6	Original	26.5	Original
7	Original	26.6	Original
8	Original	26.7	Original
9	Original	26.8	Original
10	Original	27	1 st Rev. *
11	Original	28	Original
12	Original	29	Original
13	Original		
14	Original		
15	Original		
16	Original		
17	Original		
18	Original		
19	1 st Rev.		
20	1 st Rev.		
21	1 st Rev.		THE STREET ASSESSED IN
22	1 st Rev.		PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY
23	1 st Rev.		EFFECTIVE
24	1 st Rev.		
25	1 st Rev.		NOV 05 1999
			The state of the s

* - indicates those pages includes with this filing

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011,
SECTION 9 (1)
BY: Stechand Ball
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Issued: November 4, 1999

Effective: November 5, 1999

By:

TARIFF FORMAT

Page Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right hand corner of the page. Pages are numbered sequentially. From time to time new pages may be added to the tariff. When a new page is added between existing pages a decimal is added to the preceding page number. For example, a new page added between Pages 3 and 4 would be numbered 3.1.

Explanation of Symbols - When changes are made in any tariff sheet, a revised sheet will be issued canceling the tariff sheet affected. Changes will be identified on the revised page(s) through the use of the following symbols:

- (C) To signify changed regulation.
- (D) To signify discontinued rate or regulation.
- (I) To signify increased rates.
- (M) To signify material relocated from one page to another without change.
- (N) To signify new rate, regulation, or text.
- (R) To signify reduced rate.
- (T) To signify a change in text, but no change in rate or regulation.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

BY Phyllis Fannis DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550 Reston, Virginia 20190

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Title Page	Cover
Check Sheet	1
Table of Contents	3
Section 1 - Technical Terms and Abbreviations	5
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations	7
Section 3 - Description of Service & Rates	15
Section 4 - Miscellaneous Services	27
Section 5 - Promotions	28
Section 6 - Contract Services	29

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR, RATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997 Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Application of Tariff

This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to the furnishing of intrastate resale common carrier communications service by NET-tel Corporation within the State of Kentucky.

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

> > MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.
Effective: March 21, 1997 Issued: February 19, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

SECTION 1 - TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Access Line - An arrangement which connects the Subscriber's or Customer's location to the Carrier's designated point of presence or network switching center.

Authorized User - A person, firm or corporation, or any other entity authorized by the Customer or Subscriber to communicate utilizing the Company's services.

Carrier or Company - NET-tel Corporation unless otherwise indicated by the context.

Commission - Refers to the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Customer - The person, firm or corporation, or other entity which orders, cancels, amends, or uses service and is responsible for the payment of charges and/or compliance with tariff regulations.

Customer Premises Equipment - Terminal equipment, as defined herein, which is located on the Customer's premises.

Dedicated Access - See Special Access Origination/Termination.

KPSC - Refers to the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

NET-tel - Used throughout this tariff to refer to NET-tel Corporation unless otherwise indicated by the text.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

SECTION 1 - TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS, (CONT'D.)

Special Access Origination/Termination - Where originating or terminating access between the Customer and the interexchange carrier is provided on dedicated circuits. The Access Provider provides these dedicated circuits from the Customer's location to the Company's point of presence. The rates and charges for dedicated circuits are determined by the Access Provider and the Customer is responsible for payment of these charges to the Access Provider.

Subscriber - The person, firm, corporation, or other legal entity which arranges for services of the Company on behalf of itself or Authorized Users. The Subscriber is responsible for compliance with the terms and conditions of this tariff. A Subscriber may also be a Customer when the Subscriber uses services of the Company.

Switched Access Origination/Termination - Where originating or terminating access between the Customer and the interexchange carrier is provided on Feature Group circuits.

Terminal Equipment - Devices, apparatus, and associated wiring, such as teleprinters, telephones, or data sets.

V & H Coordinates - Geographic points which define the originating and terminating points of a call in mathematical terms so that the airline mileage of the call may be determined. Call mileage is used for the purposed of rating calls.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

NET-tel services and facilities are furnished for intrastate communications originating at specified points within the state of Kentucky under terms of this tariff. Intrastate service is offered in conjunction with interstate service.

NET-tel installs, operates, and maintains the communications services provided hereinunder in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tariff. NET-tel may act as the Customer's agent for ordering access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the Customer, to allow connection of a Customer's location to the NET-tel network. The Customer shall be responsible for all charges due for such service arrangement.

The Company's services and facilities are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.

2.2 Limitations

- 2.2.1 Presubscribed service is offered in Equal Access areas only. Travel service is available from all areas.
- 2.2.2 Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and equipment and subject to the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.3 NET-tel reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control, or when the Customer is using service in violation of provisions of this tariff or of the law.
- 2.2.4 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011.

Issued By:

NET-tel Corporation BY <u>Phylls Fannia</u> 11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 5500RECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV

2.3 Use

Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the service is technically suited.

2.4 Liabilities of the Company

- liability of the Carrier for its willful 2.4.1 misconduct or gross negligence which is the sole legal cause of damage or injury is not limited by this tariff. With respect to any other claim or suit, by a Subscriber or by any others, for damages associated with acts or omissions involving initiation, installation, provision, termination, maintenance, repair, interruption or restoration of any service or facilities offered under this tariff, the Carrier's liability, if any, is limited to 1/30 of the monthly charge for service affected for each 24-hour period during which such failure of service occurs and is reported to or known by the Carrier. In addition, Subscriber credits for interrupted service will be issued, applicable, in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.13.
- 2.4.2 In no event will Carrier be responsible for consequential damages or lost profits suffered by Subscriber on account of interrupted or unsatisfactory service unless Carrier is found to have been willfully negligent.
- 2.4.3 The Carrier is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies furnishing a portion of the service. No agents or employees of other carriers shall be deemed to be agents or employees of the Carrier.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

2.4 Liabilities of the Company, (Cont'd.)

- The Carrier shall be indemnified and held harmless 2.4.4 by the Customer against:
 - Claims for libel, slander, infringement of a. copyright or unauthorized use of any trade mark, trade name or service mark arising out of the material, data, information, or other content transmitted by the Customer over the Carrier's facilities; and
 - Claims for patent infringement arising from b. or connecting the Carrier's combining facilities with apparatus and systems of the Customer; and
 - All other claims arising out of any act or omission of the Customer in connection with any service provided by the Carrier.
- 2.4.5 The Carrier will make no refund of overpayments by a Subscriber unless the claim for such overpayment together with proper evidence be submitted within one (1) year from the date of alleged overpayment unless billing records prepared by the Company can be produced which would justify a credit beyond one year.
- Acceptance by the Commission of the liability provisions contained in this tariff does not 2.4.6 constitute its determination that the limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law, but the recognition that, as it is the duty of the courts to adjudicate negligence claims and rights to recover damages therefor, so it is the duty of the courts to determine the validity of the exculpatory provisions of this tariff.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

MAR 2 1 1997

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997 PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011,

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Office(TION 9(1) Issued By:

BY Phillis Fannin NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550 DRECTOR RATES & RESEARCH DIV.

2.5 Taxes

All state and local taxes (i.e., gross receipts tax, sales tax, municipal utilities tax) are listed as separate line items and are not included in the quoted rates.

2.6 Terminal Equipment

The Company's facilities and service may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided terminal equipment or Customer-provided communications systems, such as a telephone set, PBX or key system. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the expense of the Customer, except as otherwise provided. The Customer is responsible for all costs at his or her premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, incurred in the use of the Company's service. When such terminal equipment is used, the equipment shall comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards of the telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications Commission.

2.7 Installation and Termination

Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Customer and the Company. The service agreement does not alter rates specified in this tariff.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

Control of the second of the second of

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

Phillis fannin

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By: Thomas

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

2.8 Payment for Service

The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for services and equipment furnished to the Customer or to an Authorized User of the Customer by NET-tel. All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or to the Company's authorized billing agent (such as a local exchange telephone company or other authorized entity). Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the billing agent and subject to the rules of regulatory agencies, including the P.S.C Ky. Any objections to billed charges must be reported to the Company or its billing agent within sixty days after receipt of bill. Contested charges will be handled in accordance with 807 KAR 5:006, Section 9. Adjustments to Customer's bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate. All invoices are due and payable upon receipt of the invoice. All amounts owed after the due date are subject to late payment penalty charges of 1.5% per month. The penalty may be assessed only once on any bill for rendered services. Any payment received shall first be applied to the bill for service rendered. Additional penalty charges shall not be assessed on unpaid penalty charges.

2.9 Cancellation by Customer

Any Customer desiring service terminated or changed from one address to another, shall give the utility three (3) working days' notice in person, in writing, or by telephone, provided such notice does not violate contractual obligations or tariff provisions.

2.10 Interconnection

Service furnished by NET-tel may be connected with the services or facilities of other carriers. Such service or facilities, if used, are provided under the terms, rates and conditions of the other carrier. The Customer is responsible for all charges billed by other carriers for use in connection with NET-tel service. Any special interface equipment or facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between Carriers is the responsibility of the Customer. OF KENTUCKY **EFFECTIVE**

MAR 2 1 1997

Issued: February 19, 1997

EffectiversuMa 46 807 KAR 509 P.7 SECTION 9 (1)

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer funda fannia NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

2.11 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company

NET-tel may refuse or discontinue service under the following conditions. Unless otherwise stated, the Customer will be given ten (10) day's written notice and allowed a reasonable time to comply with any rule or remedy any deficiency.

- 2.11.1 For non-compliance with and/or violation of any State or municipal law, ordinance or regulation pertaining to telephone service.
- 2.11.2 For the use of telephone service for any other property or purpose other than that described in the application.
- 2.11.3 For neglect or refusal to provide reasonable access to the Company for the purpose of inspection and maintenance of equipment owned by the Company.
- 2.11.4 For non-compliance with and/or violation of the Commission's regulations or the Company's rules and regulations on file with the Commission, provided ten (10) working days' written notice is given before termination.
- 2.11.5 For non-payment of bills for telephone service. Suspension or termination of service shall not be made without ten (10) working days' written notice to the Customer.
- 2.11.6 Without notice in the event of Customer use of equipment in such a manner as to adversely affect the Company's equipment or the Company's service to others.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR RATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

2.11 Refusal or Discontinuance by Company, (Cont'd.)

- 2.11.7 Without notice in the event of tampering with the equipment furnished and owned by the Company.
- 2.11.8 Without notice in the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of service. Whenever service is discontinued for fraudulent use of service, the Company may, before restoring service, require the Customer to make, at his own expense, all changes in facilities or equipment necessary to eliminate illegal use and to pay an amount reasonably estimated as the loss in revenues resulting from such fraudulent use.
- 2.11.9 For failure of the Customer to make proper application for service.
- 2.11.10 For Customer's breach of the contract for service between the Company and the Customer.
- 2.11.11 When necessary for the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental authority having jurisdiction.

2.12 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment

Upon reasonable notice, the facilities provided by the Carrier shall be made available to the Carrier for tests and adjustments as may be deemed necessary by the Carrier for maintenance. No interruption allowance will be granted for the time during which such tests and adjustments are made when the interruption is less than twenty-four consecutive hours.

2.13 Tests, Pilots, Promotional Campaigns and Contests

The Carrier may conduct special tests, pilot programs, waivers and promotions at its discretion to demonstrate the ease of use, quality of service and to promote the sale of its services. Such promotions will be filed with the P.S.C. Ky. in this Tariff on not less than thirty (30) days notice in this Tariff on not less than thirty PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effectivinguant 40 807 KAR 5.011997 SECTION 9 (1)

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer of Fundamental Chief Financial Chief

NET-tel Corporation DRECTOR RATES & RESEARCH DIV.

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

2.14 Interruption of Service

Credit allowances for interruptions of service caused by service outages or deficiencies are limited to the initial minimum period call charges for re-establishing the interrupted call.

2.15 Reservation of 800 Numbers

The Company will make every effort to reserve 800 vanity numbers for customers, but makes no guarantee or warranty that the requested number(s) will be available.

2.16 Bill Format

Bills rendered to Customers by NET-tel contains the following information:

Date of Bill Rendering

Company Name

Toll Free Customer Service Number: (888) 263-8835 (2NET-tel)

Service Dates

Due Date

Past Due Date

Current Amount Due

Past Due Amount (if applicable)

Past Due Penalties (if applicable)

Date and Time of Each call

Originating location and terminating number

Call duration

Call type

Total Charges per Call

Total Charges for Company Services

Taxes

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

BY Phyllis Fannin DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES

3.1 General

NET-tel provides direct dialed (1+), inbound "800" and travel card service for communications originating and terminating within the State of Kentucky under terms of this tariff.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

BY Phylis Hannin DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.2 Calculation of Distance

Usage charges for mileage sensitive services vary based on the type of service subscribed to by the Customer. For services utilizing switched access, mileage measurements for rate schedules are based on the distance in airline miles between rate centers associated with the originating and terminating stations. For services utilizing dedicated access, mileage measurements for rate schedules are based on the distance in airline miles between the NET-tel network access point associated with the station utilizing Dedicated Access Origination/Termination and the rate center associated with the called/calling station.

The distance between the originating and terminating points is calculated by using the "V" and "H" coordinates of the serving wire centers as defined by BellCore (Bell Communications Research), in the following manner:

- Step 1: Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the serving wire center or network access point serving the Customer's location and the called/calling station.
- Step 2: Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates.
 Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates.
- Step 3: Square the differences obtained in Step 2.
- Step 4: Add the squares of the "V" difference and "H" difference obtained in Step 3.
- Step 5: Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division.
- Step 6: Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance between the originating and terminating locations of the call.

Formula:

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

$$\sqrt{\frac{(V_1 - V_2)^2 + (H_1 - H_2)^2}{10}}$$

MAR 2 1 1997

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 19 807 KAB 5.011.

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Off Brerthylis fannin

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.3 Timing of Calls

Billing for calls placed over the network is based in part on the duration of the call.

- 3.3.1 Timing for all calls begins when the called party answers the call (i.e. when two way communications are established.) Answer detection is based on standard industry answer detection methods, including hardware and software answer detection.
- 3.3.2 Chargeable time for all calls ends when one of the parties disconnects from the call.
- 3.3.3 Call durations and minimum calling periods are provided with each specific product as described in this tariff.
- 3.3.4 There is no billing applied for incomplete calls.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.4 Rate Periods

Unless otherwise indicated elsewhere in this tariff, all usage-based rates are subject to the following time-of-day, day-of-week, and holiday rate periods:

- 3.4.1 Day Rate Period Applies to that portion of a call occurring from 8:00 AM to, but not including, 5:00 PM Monday through Friday.
- 3.4.2 Evening Rate Period Applies to that portion of a call occurring from 5:00 PM to, but not including, 11:00 PM Sunday through Friday.
- 3.4.3 Night/Weekend Rate Period Applies to that portion of a call occurring from 11:00 PM to, but not including 8:00 AM all days, 8:00 AM to, but not including, 11:00 PM Saturday; 8:00 AM to, but not including, 5:00 PM Sunday.
- 3.4.4 Holiday Rates Apply to that portion of a call occurring on Company acknowledged Holidays. The rate is equivalent to the Evening Rate unless a lower rate would normally apply. Holiday rates apply on New Year's Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.
- 3.4.5 When a call is established in one rate period and ends in another rate period, the rate in effect at the calling station applies to the portion of the call occurring within that rate period. When a unit of time is split between two rate periods, the rate applicable to that unit of time is based on the rate period in which it began.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

BY Phyllis Farnia.
DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.5 NET-tel 1+ Service

NET-tel 1+ Service allows Customers to place direct dialed calls to terminating locations throughout the state of Kentucky. Customers are presubscribed to the NET-tel network or dial the Company's Access Code. Calls are placed by dialing "1+" or Casual Calling Access Code and the destination telephone number, including the area code if applicable. Customers may access NET-tel 1+ Service through switched or dedicated access facilities. Calls are billed in one (1) minute increments with an initial period, for billing purposes, of one (1) minute.

3.5.1 Per Minute Rate

	Per	Recurring
Monthly Usage	<u>Minute Rate</u>	Monthly Fee
\$ 0 - \$100	\$0.1250 (R)	\$ 2.99 (R)
\$101 - \$200	0.1250 	2.99
\$201 - \$300	0.1250	2.99
\$300 +	0.1250 (R)	2.99 (R)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

FEB 04 1998

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 9 (1)
BY: Stechan Bull

Issued: February 3, 1998 Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.6 Toll Free Inbound Service

NET-tel Toll Free Inbound Service is an inward calling service. It permits termination of intrastate calls from diverse geographic locations to Customer local exchange lines or to dedicated access facilities. With NET-tel Toll Free Service, the Customer is billed for the call rather than the call originator. Calls are billed in six (6) second (T) increments with an initial period, for billing purposes, of (T) eighteen (18) seconds.

(T)

Per Minute Rate Options 3.6.1

Customers of NET-tel's Toll Free Inbound Service are given the option of various billing rates depending on their calling patterns and anticipated usage. Each option provides for a lower per minute rate in exchange for a higher monthly fee.

Monthly Recurring Charge	Per Minute	Rate
\$ 5.00	\$0.1290	(R)
\$ 7.00	0.1190	1
\$10.00	0.1090	l
\$15.00	0.0990	(R)

Registration Fee per Number \$75.00 3.6.2

Volume Discount 3.6.3

Customers are eligible for volume discounts based upon there total monthly intrastate and interstate NET-tel Toll Free Inbound Service. The volume discounts for this service are:

Monthly Usage	<u>Discount</u>	
\$ 0 - \$999.99	0.00%	PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
\$1,000 +	10.00%	OF ADATOMY
\$1,000 T		FF. DOTAGE

FEB 04 1998

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. \$500 HOM P (4)

Effective: February 4, 1998 Issued: February 3, 1998

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager Issued By:

NET-tel Corporation 11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

3.7 NET-tel Dedicated Services

(T)

NET-tel Dedicated Service allows Customers to place direct dialed calls to terminating locations as well as receive toll free inbound calls from end users throughout the state of Kentucky. Customers are presubscribed to the NET-tel network through dedicaated access facilties. Calls are placed by dialing "1+" and the destination telephone number, including the area code if applicable. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments with an initial period, for billing purposes, of eighteen (18) seconds.

Special access channels, if utilized, are provided and billed to the Customer by the local exchange telephone company. Charges for the special access channel are determined by the local exchange telephone company and the Customer is responsible for payment of these charges to the local exchange telephone company. Additionally, the Customer will be billed Local Loop installation and monthly recurring charges (on a pass-through basis) in the event that the Local Loop charges are billed to NET-tel as agent for the Customer.

3.7.1 Per Minute Rates

Monthly	Usage	Outbound Per Minute Rate	Toll Free Per Minute Rate
\$ 101 - \$ 201 - \$ 301 - \$ 401 - \$ 501 - \$ 601 - \$ 701 - \$ 801 - \$ 901 - \$ 1001 -	100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 2000 3000	\$0.0850 0.0830 0.0810 0.0790 0.0770 0.0750 0.0730 0.0710 0.0690 0.0670 0.0650 0.0630 0.0610	\$0.0850 0.0830 0.0810 0.0790 0.0770 0.0750 0.0750 0.0730 0.0670 ERVICE COMMISSION 0.0670 F KENTLOKY 0.0650 0.0650 0.0630 0.0616 B 04 1998
			PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011

Issued: February 3, 1998 Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager NET-tel Corporation 11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550 Reston, Virginia 20190 RV Christal Ball

3.7 [Reserved for Future Use]

(D)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY (D)

FEB 04 1998

PURBUANT TO 907 KAR 5011.

Issued: February 3, 1998

Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

(D)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.7 [Reserved for Future Use]

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTLOKY
EFVECTIVE
(D)

FEB 04 1998

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011. SECTION 9 (1) DV SKOHO RALL

Issued: February 3, 1998

Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

3.7 [Reserved for Future Use]

(D)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

FEB 04 1998

(D)

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: SKCHOW BUY GEORETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Issued: February 3, 1998

Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

3.8 NET-tel Travel Card Services

3.8.1 NET-tel Travel Card Service

Net-tel Travel Card Service allows the Customer to place calls within the State of Kentucky while away from the home or office. The Customer must dial an "800" number and a special access code before completing the call. Calls are billed in one (1) minute increments with an initial calling period of one (1) minute.

(A) Flat Rate Travel Card Service

Per Call Surcharge \$0.00 Per Minute Rate \$0.18 (R)

> (D) | | | | (D)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

FEB 04 1998

PURSUANT TO BOT KAR 5.011.
SECTION 9 (1)
BY. SKODOW BUSSION

Issued: February 3, 1998 Effective: February 4, 1998

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation 11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

3.9 NET-tel Uni-Bill Service

NET-tel Uni-Bill Service allows Customers to place direct dialed calls to terminating locations throughout the state of Kentucky. Customers are presubscribed to the NET-tel network or dial the Company's Access Code. Calls are placed by dialing "1+" or Casual Calling Access Code and the destination telephone number, including the area code if applicable. Customers may access NET-tel Uni-Bill Service through switched access facilities. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments with an initial period, for billing purposes, of eighteen (18) seconds.

3.9.1 Per Period Rate

	Per Peri		
Monthly Usage	Initial Period	Add'l. Period	Monthly Rec. Fee
\$ 0 - \$100	\$0.0375	\$0.0125	\$ 0.99(R)
\$101 - \$200	0.0375	0.0125	0.99(R)
\$201 - \$300	0.0375	0.0125	0.99(R)
\$301 +	0.0375	0.0125	0.99(R)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE (T)

(T)

MAR 28 1998

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

BY: Stephand Buy
SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Issued: March 27, 1998 Effective: March 28, 1998

Issued By: Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

Reston, Virginia 20190

3.10 NET-tel Business One Plus Service

(N)

(N)

NET-tel Business One Plus is a flat rate outbound calling service utilizing switched access facilities. Customers must be presubscribed to NET-tel for this service. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial period, for billing purposes, of eighteen (18) seconds. This service will be targeted to business Customer averaging between \$100 and \$1,000 in monthly usage.

3.10.1 Rates

Per Minute Rate:

InterLATA

\$0.105

IntraLATA

\$0.105

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 23 1999

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan() Beed

SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Issued: July 22, 1999

Effective: July 23, 1999

(N)

(N)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.11 NET-tel Business One Plus Dedicated Service

NET-tel Business One Plus Dedicated is a flat rate outbound calling service utilizing dedicated access facilities. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial period, for billing purposes, of six (6) seconds. This service will be targeted to business Customer averaging \$2,500 or greater in monthly usage.

Special access channels, if utilized, are provided and billed to the Customer by the local exchange telephone company. Charges for the special access channel are determined by the local exchange telephone company and the Customer is responsible for payment of these charges to the local exchange telephone company. Additionally, the Customer will be billed Local Loop installation and monthly recurring charges (on a pass-through basis) in the event that the Local Loop charges are billed to NET-tel as agent for the Customer.

3.11.1 Rates

Per Minute Rate:

InterLATA

\$0.080

IntraLATA

\$0.080

rublic service commission Of Kentucky EFFECTIVE

JUL 23 1977

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5011, SECTION 8 (1) BY: SIECHEM BUY SECRETARY OF THE BUY

Issued: July 22, 1999

Effective: July 23, 1999

By:

3.12 NET-tel Business Toll Free Service

(N)

(N)

NET-tel Business Toll Free is a flat rate inbound calling service utilizing switched access facilities. This service permits the Customer to receive incoming calls from all locations within the State of Kentucky. With NET-tel Business Toll Free service, the Customer is charged for the call, not the calling party. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial period, for billing purposes of eighteen (18) seconds.

The Directory Listing Charge is a monthly charge the Company passes through to the Customer that allows the Customer to have the relevant 800 number listed in the 800 Directory Assistance service.

3.12.1 Rate Structure

(A) Per Minute Rate:

InterLATA	\$0.105
IntraLATA	\$0.105

(B)	Monthly	Recurring	Charge	(per number	١٠	\$ 1.93
(LD)	IVIOITUITY	Necurring	Charge	(pci mumoci	, .	ゆ ム・ノン

(C) Monthly Dir. Asst. Listing (per number): \$15.00 Directory Listing Order Charge (per number): \$15.00

> PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

> > JUL 23 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan BCC1 SECRETARY OF THE COUNTY

Issued: July 22, 1999 Effective: July 23, 1999

By:

(N)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.13 NET-tel Business Toll Free Dedicated Service

NET-tel Business Toll Free Dedicated is a flat rate inbound calling service utilizing dedicated access facilities. This service permits the Customer to receive incoming calls from all locations within the State of Kentucky. With NET-tel Business Toll Free Dedicated service, the Customer is charged for the call, not the calling party. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial period, for billing purposes of six (6) seconds.

Special access channels, if utilized, are provided and billed to the Customer by the local exchange telephone company. Charges for the special access channel are determined by the local exchange telephone company and the Customer is responsible for payment of these charges to the local exchange telephone company. Additionally, the Customer will be billed Local Loop installation and monthly recurring charges (on a pass-through basis) in the event that the Local Loop charges are billed to NET-tel as agent for the Customer.

The Directory Listing Charge is a monthly charge the Company passes through to the Customer that allows the Customer to have the relevant 800 number listed in the 800 Directory Assistance service.

13.1 Rate Structure

(A) Per Minute Rate:

InterLATA \$0.080

IntraLATA \$0.080

(B) Monthly Recurring Charge (per number): \$ 1.93

(C) Monthly Dir. Asst. Listing (per number):

Directory Listing Order Charge (per number):

\$15.00 OF KENTUCKY

\$15.00 FEFFORWER

\$15.00 FEFFORWER

Directory Listing Order Charge (per number): \$15.00 EFFECTIVE

JUL 23 1977

PURSUAN) TO 807 KAR 5.011. SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Buy

Effective: July 23, 1999

Issued: July 22, 1999

By:

(N)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.14 NET-Point Calling Card Service

NET-Point Calling Card Service allows the Customer to place calls within the State of Kentucky while away from the home or office. The Customer must dial a toll free number and a special access code before completing the call. Calls are billed in six (6) second increments after an initial period, for billing purposes, of thirty (30) seconds. Per minute charges as well as a per call surcharge apply.

3.14.1 NET-Point Calling Card - Enhanced Features

The following calling card features are being offered by the Company to Customers of NET-Point Calling Card Service. Enhanced features rates are applied on a standalone basis and are not combined with any other usage rates. In addition other non-regulated calling card services may be offered to the Customer.

(A) Conference Calling

Permits the addition of three additional parties to an in progress calling card call. Per minute rates as well as a per call surcharge applies for each party ("leg") added to the conference. All calls are billed in one (1) minute increments with an initial period, for billing purposes, of one (1) minute and are billed for each leg of the circuit.

(B) Personal Speed Dial List

The Personal Speed Dial List allows the Customer to set up and change a list of their most frequently dialed domestic and international telephone numbers, for the convenience of speed dialing.

(C) Directory Assistance

Customers can contact a Directory Assistance operator while utilizing their NET-Point Calling Card. The DA operator will provide the Customer William Card. The ability to get two (2) calls per request. The operator will also refer to complete the call for the Customer for an additional surcharge.

JUL 23 1999

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5.011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: Stephan Brown

Effective: PARY RESON PROOF

Issued: July 22, 1999

By:

3.14 **NET-Point Calling Card Service, (Cont'd.)**

(N)

3.14.2 NET-Point Calling Card Service

Calling Card Rates (A) Per Minute Rate

\$0.21

Monthly Recurring Charge **(B)**

\$0.00

(C) Non-recurring Charge \$3.00 per card

Public Telephone Surcharge/per call **(D)**

\$0.29

In order to recover the Company's expenses to comply with the FCC's pay telephone compensation plan effective on October 7, 1997 (FCC 97-371), an undiscountable per call charge is applicable to all interstate, intrastate and international calls that originate from any domestic pay telephone used to access the Company's services. This surcharge, which is in addition to standard tariffed usage charges and any applicable service charges and surcharges associated with the Company's service, applies for the use of the instrument used to access The Company service and is unrelated to the Company service accessed from the pay telephone.

3.14.3 NET-Point Enhanced Card Services

(A) Conferen	nce	Call
--------------	-----	------

Per Minute / per leg Per Call Surcharge / per leg added \$0.42

\$1.65

Speed Dialing (B)

\$0.00

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMIS OF KENTUCKY

Directory Assistance (C)

Per call Operator Assistance / per call \$1.30

(N)

Issued: July 22, 1999

Effective: July 23, 1999

By:

(N)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.15 Power-Finder West Communications Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services

Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services are available to residential and business Customers over switched or dedicated facilities. Basic service permits calls, similar to traditional toll free services calls, to a Customer's designated call station number from stations in diverse geographical areas, in which the Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services Customer is billed for the call rather than the call originator. Service is available where Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services is available from the local service provider and the underlying carrier.

All calls are billed in one (1) minute increments after an initial period, for billing purposes, of one (1) minute.

3.15.1 Rates

(A)	Monthly Recurring Charge	\$100.00
(B)	Per Call Charge	\$0.10

(C) Per Minute Rates \$0.15

3.15.2 Discount Schedule

The per-minute, usage-based rate for Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services will be reduced, to the rate provided below, for Customers who pay their bill via the Company's on-line payment method. Only Customers of Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services who select the on-line payment method are eligible for this discount. The discounted per-minute rate will be effective in any billing periods subsequent to the Company's receipt of the initial on-line payment from the Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services Customer. Recurring monthly and per-call charges will continued to apply as described above.

JUL 23 1997

EFFECTIVE

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011
SECTION 9 (1)
BY Skolan BUS
SECRETARY OF THE COURT

Effective: July 23, 1999

Issued: July 22, 1999

By:

(N)

(N)

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE & RATES, (CONT'D.)

3.15 Power-Finder West Communications Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services, (Cont'd.)

3.15.3 Service Conditions

The Company is not liable for any damages arising out of failure by the Company, its agents, or employees, to obtain Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services number(s), upon request by a Customer. Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services are offered subject to limitations on availability of, and Company access to, the facilities or arrangements necessary to provide the 500 number(s), including but not limited to: unavailability of specific 500 number(s) requested by the Customer due to previous assignment of the number(s) to another customer or common carrier; unavailability of the 500 number(s) requested by the Customer in some or all of the geographic areas requested; and unavailability of the necessary 500 access service(s) from the underlying local exchange carrier in the geographic area(s) covered by a Customer request.

The Customer is responsible for payment of all calls placed to or via the Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services number(s) serviced by the Company. This responsibility is not affected by any use, misuse, or abuse of the Customer's Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services by Customer-provided systems, equipment, facilities or services interconnected to the Customer's Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services offering(s), or the use, misuse or abuse occasioned by third parties, including, without limitations, the Customer's employees, other common carrier, or members of the public who dial the Customer's Personalized Toll-Free 500 Services in error.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

JUL 23 1999

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011.
SECTION 9 (1)
SY STOCKE MAY OF THE COMMENT OF THE COMMENT.

Issued: July 22, 1999

Effective: July 23, 1999

By:

SECTION 4 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

4.1 Late Payment Charge

A late fee of 1.5% per month will be charged on any past due balance.

4.2 Return Check Charge

A return check charge of \$20.00 will be assessed for checks returned for insufficient funds. Any applicable return check charges will be assessed according to the terms and conditions of this tariff and pursuant to Kentucky law and KPSC regulations.

4.3 Directory Assistance

Directory Assistance is available to Customers of NET-tel Service. A Directory Assistance charge applies to each call to the Directory Assistance Bureau. Up to two requests may be made on each call to Directory Assistance. The Directory Assistance charge applies to each call regardless of whether the Directory Assistance Bureau is able to furnish the requested telephone number.

Directory Assistance, Per Call

\$1.40

(T)

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

NOV 05 1999

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1) BY: SKOHOLO BOOD SECRETARY OF THE COMMISSION

Issued: November 4, 1999

Effective: November 5, 1999

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Regulatory Manager NET-tel Corporation 1023 31st Street, NW Washington, DC 20007

SECTION 5 - PROMOTIONS

5.1 Promotions - General

From time to time the Company shall, at its option, promote subscription or stimulate network usage by offering to waive some of all of the nonrecurring or recurring charges for the Customer (if eligible) of target services for a limited duration, not to exceed 90 days, or by offering premiums or refunds of equivalent value. Such promotions shall be made available to all similarly situated Customers in the target market area.

5.2 Demonstration of Calls

From time to time the Company shall demonstrate service by providing free test calls of up to four minutes duration over its network.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF KENTUCKY
EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011, SECTION 9 (1)

BY Phylis Farnia DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550

SECTION 6 - CONTRACT SERVICES

6.1 General

At the option of the Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet specialized requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff. The terms of each contract shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include discounts off of rates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges for specially designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general service offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or terminating access, mixture of services or other distinguishing features. Service shall be available to all similarly situated Customers for six months after the initial offering to the first contract Customer for any given set of terms.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY EFFECTIVE

MAR 2 1 1997

PURSUANT TO 807 KAR 5:011. SECTION 9 (1)

BY: Phyllis Fannin DIRECTOR PRATES & RESEARCH DIV.

Issued: February 19, 1997

Effective: March 21, 1997

Issued By:

Thomas M. Lera, Chief Financial Officer

NET-tel Corporation

11921 Freedom Drive, Suite 550